ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
January 24, 2001
1:35 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Chair

Senat or Loren Leman, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Jerry Ward

Senat or Bettye Davis

MEVMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW BY COW SSI ONER KAREN PERDUE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SCCI AL SERVI CES

W TNESS REG STER

Commi ssi oner Karen Perdue

Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

M. Jim Nordlund, Director
Di vi sion of Public Assistance
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601

Ms. Angel a Sal erno

Department of Health &
Soci al Servi ces

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-1, SIDE A
Number 001

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- January 24, 2001



CHAIR LYDA GREEN called the Senate Health, Education & Soci al
Services Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present were
Senators Leman, W/ ken, Ward and G een. CHAIR GREEN noted that the
comm ttee woul d hear a presentation about the Departnent of Health
and Soci al Services today.

COW SSI ONER KAREN PERDUE, Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) reviewed the information provided in both slide show form
and in booklet form entitled, "Wlfare Reform Wat's Next,"
prepared by DHSS. Following is a synopsis of that presentation.

DHSS has been holding community neetings on Wlfare Reform
Meeti ngs have been held in Kenai, Fairbanks, Mt-Su and Anchorage,
and the last neeting will be held in Juneau next week.

The Adm nistration and Legi sl ature have been working on this issue
for a nunber of years. In 1995, the first blueprint for welfare
reform was devel oped. That bl ueprint contained five objectives.
DHSS hel d 14 neetings across the state to ask people what the new
state |aw shoul d do. One common response was that conmunities
wanted nore |ocal responsibility for managi ng welfare reform and
anot her was that welfare reform should encourage people to work.

The bl ueprint was revised in March, 1996 with a new t hene of noving
Al askans from welfare into jobs so that they could support their
famlies and to nmaintain a safety net for those truly in need.

Senator Green and DHSS wor ked together on the issue and | egislation
was signed into law in June of 1996. The Al aska Tenporary
Assi st ance Program (ATAP) was established. The key conponents of
that law are a five-year limt on benefits for adults, mandatory
work activities, mnor parent requirenents; benefit reductions,
child support provisions, policies to "make work pay,"” and
establish famly self sufficiency plans via contracts with the
famlies. The federal |aw was enacted shortly after and it pretty
much mrrored the state |aw. The federal |aw established the
Tenporary Assistance for Needy Famlies (TANF) programand did away
with the Ald to Famlies wth Dependent Children. The federa
program is now funded through block grants given to the states.
That way, if the prograns inproved the states could keep the noney,
if not, the states were left with the risk. The concept behind the
bl ock grants was to maxim ze the state's flexibility. The federal
law wi || be reauthorized next year.

It took DHSS a full year to get the new state and federal |aws
i npl enented. DHSS asked the State to reinvest any savings in child
care assistance and job training prograns. DHSS started doing a
|l ot of community contracting wth non-profit agencies. DHSS

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- January 24, 2001



adopted a "work first" policy, which has been sonewhat
controversial. Wlfare recipients are given short-term training
skills with the intent of getting them enployed quickly. Once
enpl oyed, recipients | ook at what other kinds of skills they want
to devel op.

DHSS did a ot of work on job developnent. It formed a Wrk Star
commttee, which is an enployer directed conmittee, to recognize
enpl oyers for their contributions. Separate offices for welfare no
| onger exist - they have been conbined with ot her service agencies
to provide "one-stop" shopping. Soon after canme the federal
Workforce Investnent Act, which continued the trend toward
wor kf orce i nvestnment boards at the | ocal |evel.

Three organi zations have stepped forward and taken the risk of
wel fare reform the Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), the Association
of Village Council Presidents (AVCP), and the Tlingit-Haida Central
Counci | (THCCO) . Those organi zations are taking care of benefit
eligibility, paynents and job placenent.

Regar di ng the denographics of welfare recipients, while the overal
nunber has decreased, the nunber of child-only cases has increased.
Those children are generally in sone sort of informal foster care.

CHAI R GREEN asked if the nunber of child-only cases is expected to
remain static.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE said it is and that those ambunt to about 1200
cases.

CHAI R GREEN asked if there will be no reason for those children to
go off of the programuntil they reach the age of 18 unless they
are adopt ed.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said that is correct.

Regarding famly size, COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d that at |east two-
thirds of the cases are made up of famlies of no nore than three
people, including adults. Single parent famlies are al so subject
to the work requirenents. She discussed distribution by geographic
area, age of children and adults on the program ethnic origin and
the length of time that recipients stay on the program She noted
that over 1,000 famlies are nearing the five-year tine [imt.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE di scussed the results of welfare reform The
caseload has continually declined since 1994 in alnost every
jurisdiction. DHSS contracted with the University of Alaska to do
a "leaver" study. About 700 people who are no |longer on welfare

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- January 24, 2001



have been interviewed extensively. About 30 percent of |eavers
have returned to the programw thin two years. The average wage of
a former welfare recipient is $10.52. Mre than one-third of the
| eaver famlies have a second working adult in the household

Communi ty support systens, such as churches and food banks, are
bei ng used nore by recipients. Al aska Native famlies are |eaving
at the sane rate and 71 percent agreed that there should be a tine
limt.

Al aska ranks eighth in the percent of recipients who are enpl oyed
and seventh in the average nunber of hours those people are
enpl oyed. No state ranks higher when both of those neasures are
conbi ned. Al aska ranks 15th in its percentage of adults invol ved
in all work activities, which includes volunteer work, and 6th in
the nunber of hours spent at those activities. Again, no state
ranks hi gher in both of those nmeasures.

Al aska has done two things with its child care spending. It has
replaced all of the state noney with welfare savings and it
provides child care for applicants so that they can go to job
i nterviews. Child <care 1issues are nunerous: | i censi ng,
avai lability for different ages and during different tinmes of the
day.

DHSS estimates 349 famlies wll have reached the five-year limt
in July, 2002. By July 2003, about 1103 famlies will exceed the
time limt. The law allows for a 20 percent exenption for the
current caseload. DHSS will be asking the Legislature whether it
shoul d revanp the 20 percent and establish criteria rather use a
percentage. A portion of the 20 percent of recipients who will be
exenpted wll nost likely be grandparents, people wth
disabilities, donestic violence victinms, and people wi th disabled
chil dren. The remainder of the 20 percent will be made up of
peopl e who need extra tine. DHSS wants to discuss this policy
guestion with the Legislature.

DHSS wants to continue to reinvest the federal savings to help
peopl e who are about to hit the tinme limt but have substanti al
barriers to enploynent, such as nental illness or |I|earning
di sabilities.

CHAI R GREEN asked if DHSS s request to reinvest federal savings to
provi de intensive work services will be a recurring request. She
noted that another group will be neeting the tinme limt next year
and expressed concern that the Legislature did envision saving
noney fromwelfare reform

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said there has been a substantial savings in

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- January 24, 2001



state funds. She pointed out that when reauthorization of the
federal |aw conmes up, Congress will ask what should be done with
the bl ock grant noney that is sitting in the states and bei ng used
for the other purposes. How President Bush cones out on this issue
will be inportant.

CHAI R GREEN asked if DHSS has partnered with the comm ssion that
supports enpl oynent of people with disabilities and simlar boards
in this endeavor. She asked if DHSS duplicates any of the
activities of those groups.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d DHSS has seen an increase in the nunber of
peopl e who have been designated as disabled. She said the board
for the enploynent of people with disabilities works with the
Departnent of Labor. Their direction is to pronote work for people
with disabilities. She said there is a lot of overlap to talk
about. There has been an effort to allow people, through state
|l aws, to work without losing all of their benefits.

CHAI R GREEN noted the Legislature passed a |aw a couple of years
ago that allows people to work w thout |osing health insurance
benefits. She comented that she was incredi bly di sappoi nted when
she read a recent article in the Anchorage Daily News because the
witer took sone very good informati on about the success of welfare
reformbut zeroed in on the 30 percent of recipients who go on and
of f of the program

SENATOR LEMAN stated that DHSS has expressed concern about the need
to maintain a safety net for welfare recipients. He noted that his
idea of providing for people's needs is that the first wave of
support should be fromfamly, neighbors, friends, church groups,
soci al clubs, and that DHSS shoul d be the backstop. He asked what
DHSS is doing to insure that when people ask for assistance, they
are trying to use other resources avail able. He felt other
resources are often better because they are closer to hone and, in
many cases, closer to self-responsibility. He asked if any such
effort occurs during the interview process.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE said that during the interview process, the
tenporary nature of welfare is stressed, as well as the fact that
applicants should be thinking about getting a job and getting on
their feet right away. The intake workers can al so use a system
called "diversion" in which people can choose not to get involved
in the whole process of welfare but instead can get assistance for
a specific problem such as a utility bill or tenporary food
stanps. She pointed out that her reaction is that assistance is a
conplicated enough systemthat people with another alternative use
it.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- January 24, 2001



MR. JI M NORDLUND, Director of the D vision of Public Assistance,
DHSS, explained that DHSS tries to divert clients initially but
doesn't directly ask clients about their use of faith based, and
ot her, organizations. One very good organi zation is naned Love
Inc. in Fairbanks. It has a car give-away program for people who
need transportation. He noted that President Bush is interested in
pursuing that approach so nore activity nay take place in that
ar ea.

SENATOR LEMAN encouraged M. Nordlund to pursue that route because
he believes that welfare works best when help is close to hone. He
believes that the DHSS program should take the best features of
ot her successful prograns. He then asked if DHSS has done any
conpari sons of the contract services in the Fairbanks and Bet hel
areas to see if the results from the intakes are conparable to
those in other areas. He questioned whether those providers are
trained equally and whether the results are conparable.

MR. NORDLUND said the TCC programis only two years old and its
casel oad has declined in a simlar nanner to the rest of the state.
The new prograns have had sone start up issues but overall they
have done amazingly well.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if the enpl oyees in the internedi ate nmanagenent
| evel have sone experience in this field.

MR. NORDLUND said that sonme of the organizations have actually
hired enpl oyees from DHSS and paid t hem nore.

SENATOR LEMAN said he hopes the net result is a savings to the
State.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE sai d she thinks welfare reformis chall enging
because it is not easy to find great jobs for recipients and al so
contractors nust westle with the reasons for dependency and with
econom ¢ devel opnent issues. She noted it will not be easy to do
wel fare reformin rural Al aska.

CHAI R GREEN noted that Senator Taylor joined the commttee.

SENATOR W LKEN asked what barriers prevent recipients fromgetting
a job.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE r esponded substance abuse, |ack of basic skills
and | ow self esteem

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the problemis not that the door is closed
it is that the door is open but it is difficult for people to get

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- January 24, 2001



through it.
COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE agr eed.

SENATOR W LKEN asked Commi ssioner Perdue to speak about a slide
entitled "Post Enpl oynent Exchange."

COW SSI ONER PERDUE explained that the idea behind that is to
prevent the 30 percent return rate by trying to provide people with
sonme support after they have been in the job place for a period of
time. There nay cone a tinme when those people are having second
t houghts about their skill levels. She pointed out that sone of
the <challenges of getting up in the norning, having no
transportation, getting a child to childcare and getting to work on
time are difficult.

SENATOR WARD asked what percentage of recipients will never get off
of welfare and whether there is a proposal to treat those
recipients differently so that the 20 percent exenption can be used
differently.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE t hought that woul d be a good di scussion to have
because there is a percentage of recipients who need nore than
tenporary assi stance. Many other states are asking the sane
guestion. DHSS would like to have that dial ogue but right now it
is trying to give itself nore flexibility within the five-year tine
limt.

SENATOR WARD expressed concern that if five percent of recipients
will never be able to get off of welfare, that group's needs shoul d
be addressed so that it can be renmoved fromthe 20 percent limt.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE said one idea would be to take people out of
the 20 percent who will never get off of welfare.

SENATOR WARD sai d yes because ot herwi se, others will be shoved out
in order to keep people out who woul d never get out anyway. That
group should be put in a different program

CHAI R GREEN sai d she understood that DHSS is working on | egislation
to address that issue and would bring it to the Legislature.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE said that is correct. She said that it has
been difficult for DHSS to accept the idea that sone people wll
have to drop off of the program Each nonth, people wll be
dropping off and there will be cases that DHSS will wish it could
have done nore about. DHSS is |ooking for recipients who are doing
everything they can to conply but for one reason or another cannot

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- January 24, 2001



get on their feet so that those cases can be exenpted.

SENATOR WARD repeated that if the exenption limt is 20 percent,
t hen the permanent recipients should be placed el sewhere to free up
t hat noney for others.

MR. NORDLUND comented that other states have approached that
probl em by noving the permanent recipients into another program
that is not considered tenporary. DHSS is finding that sone of the
fol ks should be placed in the federal social security program (SSl)
for disabl ed peopl e because that programis not tenporary.

COVMM SSI ONER PERDUE poi nted out that the SSI programis not easy to
qualify for

CHAI R GREEN asked if the SSI paynents are conparable to TANF.
COWM SSI ONER PERDUE sai d they are.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that the SSI program is very difficult to
qualify for - it turns down about 75 percent of all applicants. He
has worked with constituents who try to get on that program The
process is lengthy and difficult.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he has two concerns. First, he understands
that Senator Stevens came up with a waiver for the program He
asked if that waiver is based on the economc viability of a
comunity and how a community gets the waiver.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE expl ai ned that a comunity can be exenpt from
the five-year limt if unenploynent is at 50 percent or nore in the
comunity.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how unenpl oynent is counted. He said in his
comunity a person fell off of the unenploynment roll after 18
nont hs and di sappeared as a nunber. He asked if a village never
had enpl oynent how a survey woul d be done.

MR, NORDLUND expl ai ned that the federal |aw says the states can use
their own data to determ ne that unenploynent rate. The federa
data does not neasure the nunber of discouraged workers who nove

away because there is no enpl oynent. DHSS has asked the Al aska
Department of Labor to use the census data to cal culate what the
true unenploynent rate is. They will determ ne the nunber of

peopl e unenpl oyed conpared to the nunber of working aged adults in
a village.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if he could request that such a survey be done
on his town.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- January 24, 2001



MR. NORDLUND sai d yes.

SENATOR TAYLOR commrented that there seens to be a trenendous split
in the way this law is being interpreted. Southeast comrunities
have been hard hit by the loss of the tinber econony and the
downturn in the fishing econony. Those people are expected to
| eave and find a job el sewhere. They are no |onger counted as
unenpl oyed. Those people just disappear so consequently his
comunity is down to about seven percent unenploynment right now.

TAPE 01-1, SIDE B
Number 2500

SENATOR TAYLCOR said the people of Wangell are expected to nove and
find a job el sewhere while people in a rural village are expected
to stay there and get an exenption fromthe five-year limt because
t hey have never worked in the village. He said he finds that dua
system difficult in a society that is supposed to be treating
everyone equally.

CHAI R GREEN asked if that waiver contains a population factor or
whether it is determned only by prosperity and | ocati on.

MR. NORDLUND s response was i naudi bl e.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d she didn't believe any of the comunities
on the list were the size of Wangell.

MR. NORDLUND said comrunities |ike Bethel are not exenpt but the
surroundi ng vill ages are.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that the core of the problemis jobs and the
econony. |If no jobs are available, welfare reformw || not work.
Awnhi | e back, the State of Massachusetts aggressively invested state
general funds to set up infrastructure and recruiting businesses.
The nunmber of welfare recipients in the greater Boston area
decreased significantly. The anmount invested was far |ess than the
anount saved. He asked when this State is going to devel op
resources or assist resource based industries, other than big oil.
He pointed out that the folks in the villages selected particul ar
| ands under AN LCA because of the tinber on the Iands but no one is
buil ding roads to those |l ands, building fish hatcheries or doing
anything to enhance mning in those areas. In the neantime we have
passed the welfare reform act and insisted that everyone go to
work. He noted the single biggest cry he has heard in the villages
for ten years is: when will you bring sone jobs here?

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- January 24, 2001



COW SSI ONER PERDUE replied that DHSS has never said that the
success of welfare reform could have happened to this degree
W thout a strong econony. She noted that the THCC has a finite
anount of noney to work with, they have clients that are reaching
the five-year limt, they have a growng birth rate and only so
many slots so they have to get on an econom c devel opnent agenda.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that if people want to get serious about
this issue, they need to |ook at the education budget across the
state and how many i ndividual checks are being witten by school
districts that enploy the whole village when there really isn't
enough work to carry one person yet they have 10 or 15 enpl oyed.
He said he differs with the Comm ssi oner on one subject, that being
the health of the econony. Had Al aska's econony been nuch worse,
it would have ranked at the bottomin the U S. Personal incone in
Al aska ranks 28th. It was always nunber one. Now it ranks 48th in
growt h of personal incone. He applauded DHSS for what it has done
with an inpossible task and he offered to help but he cautioned
that it will take courage to find solutions next year.

SENATOR WARD asked how the Denali Commi ssion is interacting with
wel fare reformefforts regarding jobs.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE sai d DHSS has not briefed the Denali Conmm ssion
on welfare reformbut it would be a good idea to do that.

SENATOR WARD said it seens to him that the role of the Denali
Conmission is to create jobs where there were none. He felt DHSS s
effort should be tied in with the Denali Conm ssion. He asked if
the three Native agencies are going through the same drill DHSS has
gone through wth its providers.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE said she believes they are in sonme fashion
She noted sone of themonly started in Cctober.

SENATOR WARD said if this effort is not working in conjunction with
the Denali Conmm ssion whose charge it is to create jobs, then there
is areal possibility that the project will fail. Legislators wll
then be criticized for not hel ping people who cannot get off of the
wel fare program He felt a larger discussion is inportant.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE said the jobs that DHSS is | ooking at are jobs
for actual people with specific skills, rather than jobs for the
comunity. Therefore, the economc health of a community nmay
i nprove but the jobs may not be suitable for the person reaching
the five-year Iimt on welfare.

MR. NORDLUND stated the Denali Conm ssion does have a charge to

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- January 24, 2001



hel p reduce wel fare dependency. He noted DHSS has research from
the Denali Conm ssion and hopes it does well because any sort of
econom ¢ developnent in rural Alaska is bound to benefit DHSS
clients to sonme degree.

SENATOR WARD stated there doesn't seem to be any coordination
bet ween the two. He has talked to Bruce [indisc.] who is very
synpat hetic to those people who cannot find jobs, yet that is his
charge, as well as the charge of others. He expressed concern that
we have that opportunity and the Denali Commission is not
restricted to one physical area of Al aska. They can expend funds
anywhere in Al aska.

CHAI R GREEN asked if the bl ock grant program has been a good thing
for Al aska and whether DHSS s budget may be tighter if that funding
met hod changes.

COWMWM SSI ONER PERDUE said it has been beneficial for Alaska for
several reasons. First, Alaska had a high popul ation bunp. The
second issue is what would happen if there was a huge economc
downt ur n. There is a rainy day account but it has never been
appreci ably used nationally. That question will come up during the
reaut hori zati on di scussi ons.

MR. NORDLUND expl ai ned that the high population increase is a big
i ssue for Alaska. The high population increase is 2.5 percent per
year since the block grant began in 1998. According to federa

law, it will be revert to the original level in the federal FY
2000. Therefore, next year's block grant will be $7 mllion |ess
than this year's. DHSS would like to appeal to Congress to at
|l east hold it at the FYOl level. |f DHSS loses that $7 mllion, it

wi |l nmean progranms in place will have to be defunded.

CHAI R GREEN asked if the amount had a tine |imt because Congress
expected the nunber of participants to decrease.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said she thinks it was a conprom se and
Congress knew it was going to reauthorize the |law so could review
it.

CHAI R GREEN asked how the faith-based organizations that have
wor ked with DHSS so far get involved.

COM SSI ONER PERDUE stated that one of DHSS' s npbst successfu
col |l aborations is Love Inc., which is a congloneration of all of
t he churches.

CHAI R GREEN asked how to "grow' nore prograns |ike that.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- January 24, 2001



COW SSI ONER PERDUE said that the United WAy in Mat-Su is extrenely
interested and plans to get in touch with Love Inc. She said, "W
need to take that kind of spirit that they have and expose it to
ot her communities.”

SENATOR WARD asked for the nanme of the person in charge of Love
I nc.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE replied, "Terry Reichert (ph)." She said that
peopl e can donate their cars to Love Inc. and get a tax exenption.
Then, nmechanics donate tinme and fix the cars and the cars are
donated to individuals. She said it is a very popular program
She said DHSS helps Love Inc. a little bit wth equipnent, I|ike
radi os, but they do not want a | ot of help.

CHAIR GREEN commented that she thought that Alaska' s original
wel fare reform legislation had a provision that allowed a person
finishing a college degree to consider that as work hours for the
wel f are program

MR. NORDLUND said it is not specifically witten in the |aw but
DHSS does give a certain anmount of flexibility to case managers.
If a person was in the fourth year of a four year degree program
the case worker would not insist that person quit school to neet
the work requirenents for welfare.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE cautioned that the federal work requirenent
doesn't count that as an accountable work activity. She said that
one of the big gaps she sees in welfare reformprogramis that it

has no stipends for people to go to school. There nay be nobney
available for tuition, but there is nothing available for |iving
expenses.

CHAIR GREEN noted the anpbunt for an Al aska student |oan was
increased to $8500 per year. She asked if the Departnent of
Educati on now oversees chil dcare.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE said that is correct.

CHAI R GREEN asked, had welfare reform had not been inplenented,
what the total nunber of participants would be today.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE said that in the 1980s, when nore jobs were
available, the welfare rolls didn't decline.

CHAI R GREEN agreed that the results have been even greater than had

the status quo remained. She asked if other states have had the
same difficulty with the 20 percent exenption.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- January 24, 2001



MR. NORDLUND said many states have but they do not have an
expressed five-year limt in state law so they can spend state
funds beyond the five-year limt.

There being no further questions, CHAIR GREEN announced that the
Senate HESS Committee woul d hear SCR 2 and SB 19 (pending referral)
on Monday, January 29. On January 31, the conmttee will hear an
overview by the Departnent of Education and Early Chil dhood
Devel opnment and, on Saturday, January 27, Senate HESS wll be
joining the House Special Commttee on Education for a hearing on
the conpetency test. There being no further business to cone
before the comm ttee, CHAI R GREEN adj ourned the neeting.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- January 24, 2001



